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Introduction  

The Cyprus Analysis Report on the status of Financial Literacy Training and Education 

programs in Cyprus was developed in the context of the Grundtvig Lifelong Learning Program 

“Financial Literacy Competencies for Adult Learners”. The project aims to improve the 

financial literacy competencies of adult learners in order to prepare them for the challenges 

and temptations of the consumer society and to prevent situations of financial indebtedness. 

In order to accomplish this, a toolbox for adult learners, a handbook for trainers and curricula 

will be developed, validated and disseminated amongst stakeholders, training institutions and 

public bodies. The project aims to impact not only on adult learners' competencies, but also in 

new and more adequate training methodologies and resources. This type of project may have 

a strong impact in the community, since it may allow families to better manage their monthly 

budget and to increase their savings, allowing for investments. Consequently, there will be an 

augment of the available capitals and, therefore, the economy will grow and quality of life of 

citizens will also be improved. 

Cyprus’s economy is heavily dependent on financial services, attracting clients from the local 

and regional market. Its financial sector is characterized by the flexibility of the services 

offered and the highly educated staff employed in relevant services. Despite those 

orientations, Cyprus faces serious shortfalls in providing formal or informal financial literacy 

knowledge and education to the general public. On the other hand, Cyprus Public and Private 

financial institutions do provide a wide range of information towards the general public and 

their clients related to financial issue. The public institutions focus mostly on information 

distribution and awareness raise on the overall financial system of Cyprus and issues related 

to the entrance of Cyprus in the EU market. The information provided by the private 

institutions is mainly coming through advertisement and marketing practises and directed by 

profit oriented interests.  

The Cyprus Analysis Report tries to identify the existing opportunities for participation at local 

Financial Literacy Schemes and the gaps that exist in this field. In addition, the report will 

attempt to provide suggestions for improvement/ development of Financial Literacy Programs. 

The data collection was based on three resources, a desk research (through web resources, 

bibliography and printed materials), a survey among experts in fields related to financial 

literacy and through 3 face to face interviews also with relevant experts.  
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Financial Literacy 

Definition  

For the purposes of this project the consortium defined Financial Literacy as “the ability to 

understand finance. More specifically, it refers to the set of skills and knowledge that allow an 

individual to make informed and effective decisions through their understanding of finances”. 

The Organization of Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD), being involved for the 

past decade in issues of Financial Literacy and Education, is providing the following definition: 

“Financial education is the process by which financial consumers/ investors improve their 

understanding of financial products and concepts and, through information, instruction 

and/or objective advice, develop the skills and concepts and, through information, instruction 

and/or objective advice, develop the skills and confidence to become aware of (financial) risks 

and opportunities, to make informed choices, to know where to go for help, and to take other 

effective actions to improve their financial well-being and protection.”1 

Training & Schemes Criteria   

Many forms of training, information and other schemes, available, include thematic units of 

Financial Literacy. Nevertheless, not all forms of information or training related to financial 

issues can be qualified as a Financial Literacy Scheme. Based on the report “Survey of 

Financial Literacy Schemes in the EU27”2 , in order for a Training Program or a General 

Information & Communication Scheme to be qualified as a Financial Literacy Scheme, it has to 

include the 8 criteria shown in Figure 1.  

Those were selected thorough ‘EU’s (European Union), the FSA’s (Financial Services Authority, 

UK) and the OECD’s (Organization for Economic Co-Operation and Development) definitions 

of financial literacy/capability/education’.  

 

 

                                                           
1
 OECD, International Gateway for Financial Education. Retrieve on 4 March 2011 from  

 www.financial-education.org  
2
 Habschick M., Seidl B., & Evers J. (2007), Survey of financial Literacy Schemes in the EU27, Evers & Jung. 

Retrieved on 10  March 2011 from  http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/finservices-
retail/docs/capability/report_survey_en.pdf  

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Finance
http://www.financial-education.org/
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/finservices-retail/docs/capability/report_survey_en.pdf
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/finservices-retail/docs/capability/report_survey_en.pdf
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Figure 1 

 

The 8 criteria deriving from leading organizations such as EU and OECD, being a balanced 

collection of schemes’ requirements, could be adopted by independent bodies (Civil Society 

Organizations) as indicators for successful development and application of Financial Literacy 

Schemes. Following the aforementioned context, CARDET will base the following analysis and 

the process of evaluation of the existing Financial Literacy Initiatives on those 8 criteria. 
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Chapter 1: Financial Literacy in Cyprus  

Public Schemes for Financial Literacy  

 

Ministry of Finance (www.mof.gov.cy) 

The Ministry of Finance bases its mission on “Economic Development – Modernization-Social 

Progress”. Ministry’s Vision for Cyprus is “to exploit the arising opportunities and, successfully, 

confront the challenges from EU accession and globalization”. “The Ministry of Finance 

focuses on the broad economic policy issues and coordinates and supervises its Departments, 

with a view to ensure an effective implementation of the Government policy”3. 

The Citizens’ Service Desk is the Department of the Ministry of Finance which is more related 

to Financial Literacy Information provision towards the general public. The Desk has a series 

of leaflets, brochures and booklets in hard copies through which the public may have access 

to information related to the overall state economy and to some specialized issues such as 

taxation and EU economic policies.  

Apparently, the Ministry doesn’t offer any formal training courses related to financial literacy, 

although the Citizens’ Service Desk may provide a wide range of information related to the 

topic.  Overall the Ministry doesn’t offer any Financial Literacy Scheme based on the 8 criteria 

set, even though it fulfils some  of those criteria, such as basic know how and general 

information on financial issues.  

Central Bank of Cyprus (www.centralbank.gov.cy) 

The Central Bank of Cyprus is an independent financial authority, governed by relevant 

legislation of the Republic of Cyprus. Its main responsibilities as presented in its web portal 

are: 

 implementing the European Central Bank’s monetary policy decisions;  

 holding and managing the official international reserves;  

 supervising banks;  

 promoting, regulating and overseeing the smooth operation of payment and 

settlement systems;  

 safeguarding the stability of the financial system4 

                                                           
3
 Ministry of Finance, (2011), Mission. Retrieved on 10  March 2011 from 

http://www.mof.gov.cy/mof/mof.nsf/DMLmission_en/DMLmission_en?OpenDocument   
4
 Central Bank of Cyprus, (2011), About the Bank.  Retrieved on 10  March 2011 from 

http://www.centralbank.gov.cy/nqcontent.cfm?a_id=2  

http://www.mof.gov.cy/
http://www.centralbank.gov.cy/
http://www.mof.gov.cy/mof/mof.nsf/DMLmission_en/DMLmission_en?OpenDocument
http://www.centralbank.gov.cy/nqcontent.cfm?a_id=2
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The Central Bank of Cyprus does offer some form of Financial Literacy Schemes mostly related 

to general information on banking services, EU economic policies and financial services 

provided in Cyprus. Beyond this general approach on the local and the EU financial system, in 

its website it has a section on “Education”. Through this section it provides access to 2 

educational games which are hosted at the European Central Bank Website. Those 2 games 

are the “Economia”5 and the “Inflation Island”6. The Central Bank of Cyprus seems to have 

some level of awareness regarding Financial Literacy Competencies, nevertheless its approach 

remains superficial without any formal and organized training or information sharing scheme 

on Financial Literacy.  

Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission (www.cysec.gov.cy ) 

The Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission was established in 2001 as “a public 

corporate body”. Among its responsibilities of supervision and control of the Stock Exchange, 

investment and financial transactions; it is the promotion of Financial Literacy in Cyprus. This 

is clearly stated in the mission and the organization’s structure. Specifically the Commission 

has as a responsibility the Financial Education for the public. Its activities include: 

1. Submitting proposals for financial education programmes for the public. 

2. Implementation/ monitoring of the implementation of educational programmes for 

the public 

3. Coordinating and participating in the Advisory Committee for Consumer Financial 

Education7 

The commitment of the Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission towards the promotion 

of Financial Literacy was clearly stated in its policy document with number ΕΚ 16/2006, titled 

“Financial Literacy and the Survival of the Family”8. In the document the Commission is 

making a link between the viability of the overall state economy with the level of financial 

literacy at every one of its citizens. The need for a coherent Financial Literacy Policy also 

derives from the escalating complexity of new markets and the access of Cyprus in EU. Under 

these lenses the Commission is suggesting to the Government to incorporate Financial 

                                                           
5
 European Central Bank – Economia, http://www.ecb.int/ecb/educational/html/index.en.html  

6
 European Central Bank – Inflation Island, 

http://www.ecb.int/ecb/educational/inflationisland/html/index.en.html  
7
 Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission (2011), Organization Structure. Retrieved on 10 March 2011 from  

http://www.cysec.gov.cy/structure_en.aspx  
8
 Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission, (2006), Financial Literacy and the Survival of the Family. Retrieved 

on 10 March 2011 from http://www.cysec.gov.cy/Downloads/Investors/Publications/   

http://www.cysec.gov.cy/
http://www.ecb.int/ecb/educational/html/index.en.html
http://www.ecb.int/ecb/educational/inflationisland/html/index.en.html
http://www.cysec.gov.cy/structure_en.aspx
http://www.cysec.gov.cy/Downloads/Investors/Publications/
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Literacy classes in the mainstream educational system along with the development of training 

courses from specialized public institutions as the Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission.  

The Cyprus Securities and Exchanges Commission initiated in 2009 a series of courses for the 

general public on the stock market9 with the support of local public and private institutions 

such as the Central Bank, the Ministry of Trade, Industry and Tourism and the Cyprus Union of 

Investors. The objective of the courses is to provide the tools to the general public in order to 

better manage its individual budgets in relation to investments and available individual capital. 

Part of the courses was the publication of an Investors’ Guide with the cooperation of the 

European Securities and Markets Authority (www.esma.europa.eu ). The courses include the 

following thematic units: 

1. Stock Market and its functions 

2. Companies in the Stock Market 

3. Investors Basic Knowledge  

4. Financial Indicators 

5. Financial Crisis 

6. Rights of Investors 

7. Investors Best Practises 

The public is also urged to send any other thematic units that may wish to be incorporated in 

the seminars. Based on the 8 criteria (Figure 1) set for a Financial Literacy Scheme to qualify 

as such, the courses offer by the Commission are considered to be the most completed 

Scheme available in Cyprus.  

The Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission appears to be the most aware public 

institution in relation to the importance of Financial Literacy. It regularly organizes seminars 

for the general public on issues related to Financial Literacy such as Safe Investments, 

Consumer’s Budget Managements and Banking. 

Press and Information Office (www.pio.gov.cy ) 

The Press and Information Office has as its primary target to inform the general public in 

Cyprus and Internationally about all progresses related to the Republic of Cyprus. Among its 

responsibilities is to inform the general public on financial issues. Its approach on those issues 

                                                           
9
 Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission (2009) Training Programs for the General Public on Financial Issues. 

Retrieved on 5 March 2011 from 
http://www.cysec.gov.cy/Investors/Publications/Introductory/Introductory_gr.pdf  

http://www.esma.europa.eu/
http://www.pio.gov.cy/
http://www.cysec.gov.cy/Investors/Publications/Introductory/Introductory_gr.pdf
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remains wide without any specialized information related to financial literacy, providing 

mostly information on the overall Cyprus Financial System.  

Cyprus Government Web Portal (www.gov.cy ) 

The Cyprus Government Web Portal provides access among others, to all financial institutions 

of the country either public or private. In addition it combines its links (to other web portals) 

with short descriptions on the services of each institution. It hasn’t any direct link to any 

Financial Literacy Scheme; however it provides a wide range of information related to 

economy and finance.  

Human Recourses Development Authority (www.hrdauth.org.cy)  

The Authority is a semi-public organization which is governed by a board composed by 

representatives from the government, the employers union and trade unions. It offers 

funding opportunities towards private institutions to develop training and capacity building 

for workforce of Cyprus through. It doesn’t offer any particular funding scheme for financial 

literacy; nevertheless potentially it could be a leading organization in the field due to its 

overall activities and its access directly and indirectly to the vast majority of employers and 

employees in Cyprus. It could develop training opportunities for financial literacy in the same 

way it develops opportunity for capacity building, since one of its primary objective is its 

activities to have a positive impact on the overall economy of Cyprus. 

Ministry of Education and Culture (www.moec.gov.cy)  

The Ministry beyond its mainstream activities related to the overall formal educational 

system of Cyprus, it provides specialized courses for adult learners on a wide range of 

thematic units, such as Small Business Management, Marketing, Public Relations, Law and 

Accounting. The Ministry doesn’t provide any specialized course on Financial Literacy; 

however though the existing courses the general public may have access to knowledge on 

relevant issues. The Ministry having established this form of education and training for adult 

learners could potentially incorporate effectively courses directly related to Financial Literacy.  

 

Conclusion 

Based on the above presentation of the public services that have direct or indirect relation 

with financial and educational issues, it becomes apparent that the Public domain has serious 

shortfalls in conceiving a coherent and a comprehensive Financial Literacy Policy. The heavy 

dependence of Cyprus economy on financial services should alarm the official state to initiate 

http://www.gov.cy/
http://www.hrdauth.org.cy/
http://www.moec.gov.cy/
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campaigns and seminars to build the financial literacy competencies of its citizens, during an 

era where the national economy faces pressures and dangers from the global financial crisis. 

Some public institutions, and especially the Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission seem 

to realize the importance of Financial Literacy making some initial steps in developing relevant 

training programs. In addition there are public institutions that have the foundations to 

develop effective and influential financial literacy schemes, those could be the General Public 

Desk of the Ministry of Finance and the Ministry of Education through its Adult Learners 

Training Programs. 

Private Schemes for Financial Literacy  

 

Banking Services 

All banks that provide services in Cyprus provide information related to loans, deposits and 

investments for their clients. That information is primarily related to the specific financial and 

banking services provided by each bank. Banks provide information on opportunities for 

house, car, real estate or other loans, on deposits with profitable return rate or opportunities 

for investments through existing deposits of their clines. The common parameter of that 

information offered is that each bank provides attractive banking services packages in order 

to secure clients. Also within its commercial process it provides relevant information for 

individuals’ budget management. Although it could be argued that this is an indirect Financial 

Literacy Scheme, in practise is mostly commercial and marketing information. On the same 

line, the OECD in its “Recommendation on Principles and Good Practices for Financial 

Education and Awareness” argues that financial literacy “should be clearly distinguished from 

commercial advice”10.  

Consultancy Firms 

Consultancy firms in Cyprus regularly offer trainings and capacity building schemes to other 

private institutions, through a wide range of funding opportunity from national and European 

sources. The training they offer is mostly oriented towards business management and 

business incubation fields. Some firms are also involved in the provision of training for the 

general public including marginalized groups. Such training schemes involve thematic units 

                                                           
10

 OECD, (2006), The Importance of Financial Education. Retrieved 20 March 2011 from  
http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/8/32/37087833.pdf  

http://www.oecd.org/dataoecd/8/32/37087833.pdf
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such entrepreneurship and access to employment. In this context, they have the expertise 

and the experience to develop relevant financial literacy programs. There are many funding 

opportunities for such firms to develop training programs especially for marginalized groups 

(migrants and unemployed); however none of those opportunities, at the local level, is related 

to financial literacy. One of the leading consultancy firms in Cyprus that develops training 

programs for the general public is Innovade Li (www.innovade.eu). Innovade developed 

training programs for marginalized groups on how to access the labour market in Cyprus and 

guides for migrants that include information on the Cyprus economy, opportunities for 

financial support and guidance on the financial services in Cyprus. Such firms may qualify as 

the most equipped to offer Financial Literacy Schemes due to their experience and expertise 

on training related to financial issues and their established practises to attract participants in 

their training.  

Civil Society Organizations (CSOs) 

CSOs in Cyprus are quite active in delivering a wide range of programs and schemes related to 

adult learning, capacity building and literacy competencies. Although very few approach any 

issue related to financial literacy, some of the programs applied have indirect links with 

financial literacy. Those links are mostly related with information sharing on funding 

opportunities, the Cyprus economy and the labour market. Local CSOs involved in funding 

schemes provided by public authorities, find no opportunity in developing financial literacy 

programs due to the absence of such provisions in the overall public policy. Nevertheless, 

CSOs should increase their awareness on the importance of financial literacy and 

communicate to the state suggestions for an overall national policy. CARDET through its 

involvement in the current project is among the first CSOs in Cyprus that will develop a 

completed financial literacy program adaptable to the local needs and will attempt to make 

the first important steps to raise awareness on national stakeholders related to the issue.  

 

Conclusion 

Financial Literacy among private institutions in Cyprus is practically an unknown term. None 

of the private institutions in Cyprus offer any form of Financial Literacy Programs. Some of 

those may touch some elements of the Financial Literacy, but mostly this is done either form 

commercial reasons (Banks) or indirectly through other programs (Consultancy Firms and 

http://www.innovade.eu/
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CSOs). Private institutions have the expertise and the capacities to develop such programs 

and potentially could be leading providers of such schemes; however this could only come 

through a coherent policy development by the state and relevant private stakeholders. That 

policy should come along with funding opportunities for private institutions to develop such 

programs, in the context of funds invested by the state in other social and economic training 

and information schemes for the general public. The first step towards this direction is to 

raise awareness on the importance of Financial Literacy among private institutions, and the 

current project provides such an opportunity.  
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Chapter 2: FL Framework Analysis  

Identity of the Research  

The consortium of partners developed two primary data collection tools, a questionnaire and 

an interview tool, translated in each partner county’s national language. The questionnaire 

was provided online to experts through the method of snowballing and the interview was 

conducted in face to face meetings with selected experts. The objectives of the survey and 

the interviews among the experts in Cyprus related directly or indirectly with Financial 

Literacy issues were: 

1. Identify the Status of Financial Literacy in Cyprus 

2. Identify opportunities for Financial Literacy in Cyprus 

3. Propose a framework for financial Literacy Schemes/ Training Programs  

In Cyprus, 31 experts replied to the online questionnaire and 3 selected experts were 

interviewed.  

Questionnaire Responders Demographics 

Age Groups / Gender Male Female Total 

20 -29 9 7 16 

30 - 39 7 4 11 

40 – 49 3 1 4 

Total 19 12 31 

 

From the 31 experts 5 are employed in banks, 15 in private companies and 11 in Educational 

Institutions including universities and NGO training centres.   

Data Analysis  

Financial Literacy Definition 

 
Combining the replies of the 3 experts in their interviews, they see Financial Literacy as the 

basic knowledge of effective management of a person’s recourses and budget including the 

ability of taking valid decisions on investments, loans and every day expenses. One of the 

experts also emphasized the importance of accessing relevant and evaluating information and 

how to conduct a market research prior to any purchase of product or service. 

 



                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                         14 
 

The Status of FL in Cyprus 

 
Financial Literacy is considered to be either “very important” or “important” by the majority 

of the experts in Cyprus replied to the online questionnaire. In Graph 1 there is the pie chart 

with the response of all 31 experts.  

Graph1 

 

Although the majority of the experts consider Financial Literacy to be important, a number of 

experts have an opposite approach on the issue. As it has been emphasized in the review of 

existing Financial Literacy Schemes in Cyprus, the level of awareness on the importance of FL 

in Cyprus is relatively very low and this probably explains why 7 experts do not consider 

Financial Literacy not to be very important while 4 of them have a neutral approach on the 

matter.   

Financial Literacy in Cyprus is not considered to be a priority or among the major literacy 

competencies the general public has to acquire.  This is clearly reflected in the following graph 

which shows the level of Financial Literacy Education in Cyprus compared with other “Skills 

for Life” such as Writing Literacy, Communication Literacy, Soft Skills and Computer Literacy. 
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Graph 2 

 

The majority of the responders find Financial Literacy’s level to be between 40 -50 on the 

scale 1-100 in relation to other “Skills for Life”. However, on an overall approach the majority 

of the sample population find the level of Financial Literacy to be above 50. The majority of 

the experts that have this view come from an Accounting and Finance Education Background. 

The absence Financial Literacy Schemes in Cyprus as discussed in previous sections is located 

in a series of factors which have to do with a coherent national policy, funding opportunities, 

low awareness of key actors. Below in the graph 3 are the views of the experts participated in 

the questionnaire.  

 

 

 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

less 
than 20 

20-30 30-40 40-50 50-60 60-70 70-80 80 - 90 90 - 100

%

What is the scale (from 0-100) of FL 
education compared to other 'Skills for 

Life'



                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                         16 
 

 

Graph 3 

 

For the experts, the highest obstacle for the advancement of the Financial Literacy in Cyprus is 

considered to be “the growing complexity of financial products”.  Second in their choices 

comes the absence of national policy. It has to be noted that the development of a national 

policy will be a crucial element to overlap other obstacles such low funding and the absence 

of relevant courses.   

In Graph 4 there are the replies of the experts, on which are main issues in Cyprus when 

referring to Financial Literacy. In the replies, it seems that the experts agree with definition 

given in the interviews by the selected experts who noted that “budget management” is the 

most important topic of Financial Literacy.  

 

 

 

no 
national 

policy 

no 
funding

other 
priorities 
for basic 

mathemat
ics and 
adult 

numeracy

adult 
education 
develope

d on 
regional/l
ocal basis

Non 
existing 
courses 

concernin
g financial 

literacy

Low 
mathemat

ical 
knowledg

e

Too much 
informati
on about 
financial 
products

The 
growing 

complexit
y of 

financial 
products 

Series1 10 7 7 3 6 1 3 13

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

A
xi

s 
Ti

tl
e

What are the main obstacles to financial literacy in your country



                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                         17 
 

Graph 4 

 

Important issues in Cyprus in relation Financial Literacy are also “debt” and “general financial 

literacy”.  The replies in this question by the experts a first indication on which could be 

attractive thematic topics for Financial Literacy Programs in Cyprus.  

Access to information on financial literacy is extremely limited and could be obtain only 

through media/web channels. This becomes obvious in graph 5.   
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As is shown in the graph the main sources of information related to Financial Literacy comes 

from the media and the internet. The print or broadcast media have special sections on 

economy and finance which could provide some information related to financial literacy. 

Internet is an unlimited space in which the general public may have access to various Financial 

Literacy Schemes. 

Cyprus has limited opportunities for financial literacy education for the general public. As is 

shown in the following graph only few experts are aware of such programs.  

Graph 6 

 

The four experts the reply positively in this question, were referring to either blended courses 

or online courses. Those courses where for bank customers, retraining and self learning online. 

The training materials were provided in brochures and online slide show. The target groups of 

the courses were young adults and high educated adults. As the 4 experts stated the topics of 
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For the same question the 3 experts interviewed, reply that they are only aware of 

information provided by banks and the ministry of finance, mostly in the form of brochures 

targeting the general public. 

FL Framework  

In this section will be the analysis of the responses of the experts related to the potential 

framework of Financial Literacy Programs in Cyprus. The majority of the experts believe that 

the main target group for potential financial literacy programs should be young adults and 

adults of low education level. The 3 selected experts in the interview also consider the young 

adults to be the target group for such courses although they emphasized the importance of 

such courses for the general public.  

Regarding the format of the training programs, below are the major responses from the 

experts on what that format should be.  

1. Topic Included in other courses 

2. Extra financial literacy course at workplace 

3. Commercial courses for public 

4. Re-training courses for trainers 

5. Further education course for teachers 

6. Special courses for people who are in debt 

7. Special courses for people in risk 

As is shown from the above list the format of the training is expected to be divided in two 

major categories. These will be training for the general public and training for experts and 

trainers. Especially the second category is extremely important for the case of Cyprus due to 

the absence of any previous experience or expertise in this topic, and it would be crucial for 

the further development of Financial Literacy to develop relevant trainers’ capacity.   

Regarding the main topics of the financial training courses, the majority of the experts in the 

questionnaire suggested to be the “personal budget management” and “basic knowledge on 

the functions of the market”. Other topics suggested where: 

1. General Financial Issues 

2. Management of Debts 

3. Loans 
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4. Market Research 

5. New forms of Economy and Markets 

6. Investments 

In the same context where the replies of the 3 experts during the interviews, their replies in 

the same question included: 

1. Personal Budget Management 

2. Take correct financial decisions regarding investments 

3. Management of Loans 

4. Identify beneficiary financial services 

5. Evaluation of market opportunities  

As far as the teaching strategy the majority of the experts believe that “discussion” would be 

most appropriate approach. In the graph below are the replies of the experts in the relevant 

question.  

Graph 7 
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real life situations. This very important since financial literacy is something that would support 

and help people on their every day financial transactions and in general their life. 

The experts that were interviewed find as most effective teaching strategies, simulations, 

exchange of experiences among the participants and the online learning with forums, games 

and presentations.  

The most important suggestion that the majority of experts had to give to someone that will 

potentially develop financial training programs is “make them simple”. Other relevant advices 

and suggestions were: 

1. To be targeted 

2. To include special section on the dangers of the market 

3. To be well organized 

4. To provide knowledge that could be transferred by the participants to other people 

5. Well defined target group according to the topic 

6. To cover the needs of the general public 

7. To use examples 

8. To use multimedia  

9. To be timely and direct to the issue 

The suggestions from the 3 experts regarding the development of such courses where based 

on relevant questions. Firstly, regarding the structure of the courses all three of them 

emphasized that the number of participants in each course should be small and the courses 

should be flexible in terms of time and access. In addition, the 2 of them emphasized the 

importance on online learning. Regarding the potential trainers for Financial Literacy 

Programs, the experts in the interview had mix replies, since they consider appropriate to 

provide such training, academics or professional in financial services. One of the experts 

argued that the trainers for such courses should follow special training sessions before they 

would be able to deliver one. All three experts consider their organization as appropriate to 

develop such courses.  

About the administration and development of such courses, Expert 1 stated (during the 

interview) that its organization has a long standing experience in delivering training programs 

related to financial issues and business. In this context believes that with a series of Train the 
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Trainer programs, they will be able to incorporate such courses in their services. It would 

attract participants through its wide network of local organizations.  

Expert 2 emphasized the importance of online learning, arguing that such courses would be 

very effective and attractive.  

Expert 3 finds extremely important the involvement of experts in finance and accounting for 

the development of such programs which they should be promoted by both the state and the 

private institutions towards their employees.  

The majority of the experts feel comfortable in using computer, internet tools and software 

programmes at their work. Also the majority of them (18) did participated or a distance of 

online course and also 18 experts do consider it important to upgrade or improve their IT 

knowledge in order to be able to offer financial literacy program.  
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Chapter 3: Conclusion and Suggestions  

Financial Literacy for Cyprus is a relatively new term, remaining unknown for the majority of 

the Cyprus Public. The first attempts to introduce the Financial Literacy in Cyprus were made 

by the Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission in 2006 and the first organized training 

programs started in 2009 by the same authority. Since then no other private or public 

institution has develop any specialized scheme related directly to Financial Literacy. This ios 

also confirmed by the experts participated in the survey from which only 4 were aware of any 

program related to Financial Literacy. On the other hand, public and private institutions have 

the experience and expertise in delivering adult learning programs; therefore with relevant 

adaptations they could develop Financial Literacy Programs. The primary limitations for the 

development of such programs appear to be the complexity of financial environment and the 

absence of a national policy on the issue. In this context is extremely important to establish 

mechanisms of advocacy and lobbying towards the private and the public institutions to raise 

their awareness on the importance of Financial Literacy and to promote initiatives. CARDET 

through its participation in this project will be a pioneer in the promotion of financial literacy 

in Cyprus and it envisions influence the local stakeholders. 

Experts in Cyprus find as most important thematic topics for Financial Literacy to be the 

“individual Budget Management” and the “Basic Knowledge on the Functions of the Market”. 

In the modern era where financial activities and services are a central element of our 

everyday life and the market is our main domain of activity, either for professional or 

personal reasons, it is extremely important to consider those two thematic topics as pillars for 

potential financial literacy programs.  

The programs must be simple in order to be comprehensive for the general public, and in 

extent effective and influential. The structure of the programs should be build in a way that 

will be flexible in terms time and access, and in this way, the possibility of the online learning 

provisions should be taken in consideration. Important aspect for the successful development 

of such programs, especially in Cyprus, is to provide relevant Train the Trainer guidance on 

Financial Literacy, due to the limited expertise and experience on the issue, even among 

experts.  

For the successful implementation of such programs should be close cooperation between 

the public and the private services in order to exchange relevant information and expertise on 
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the issues of financial literacy. Also important will be the process to attract participants. 

Relevant courses could be applied within the workplace of institutions, businesses and public 

services in order to secure the maximum participation of the general public. Such courses 

could also be provided through the Adult Learning Courses of the Ministry of Education or to 

be incorporated in the normal activities of Training NGOs.  

 


